MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE AMESCITY COUNCIL
AMES, IOWA AUGUST 16, 2011

The Ames City Council met in special session at 7:00 pmthe 18 day of August, 2011, in the
City Council Chambers in City Hall, 515 Clark Avenue, purguda law with Mayor Ann Campbell
presiding and the following Council Members present: §dvoodman, Larson, Mahayni, Orazem,
and Wacha.Ex officio member Finseth was also present.

MOTION APPROVING TRANSFER OF CLASSC BEER & B NATIVE WINE PERMIT:
Moved by Mahayni, seconded by Goodman, to approve thefenaof a Class C Beer and B
Native Wine Permit for Ames British Foods.

Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION APPROVING REVISED FINAL PLAT FOR NORTHRIDGE HEIGHTS
SUBDIVISION, 14™ ADDITION: Moved by Davis, seconded by Wacha, to adopt
RESOLUTION NO. 11-395 approving the revised Final Plat forthridge Heights Subdivision,

14" Addition.
Roll Call Vote: 6-0. Resolution declared adopted unanimosigiged by the Mayor, and hereby
made a portion of these Minutes.

SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE RELATING TO PRECINCT AND WARD
BOUNDARIESASA RESULT OF THE 2010 CENSUS: Moved by Mahayni, seconded Wacha,
to pass on second reading an ordinance relating to prenithevard boundaries as a result of the
2010 Census.
Roll Call Vote: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimously.

SUSTAINABILITY TASK FORCE PRESENTATION OF PLAN FOR ELECTRIC
CONSUMPTION REDUCTION: City Manager Steve Schainker discussed City Council’s goal
of going green to promote environmental sustainabilitg. said the City contracted with lowa
State University for Merry Rankin to work with the &isability Task Force, and after many

months of meeting, they have compiled a plan on redu@&etyieal consumption in Ames.

Merry Rankin thanked the Council and acknowledged membée &ustainability Task Force

present. Ms. Rankin reviewed the charge given to tlsk Farce of addressing electrical
consumption of the Ames community and identifying goat$ msources toward collective

reduction. She explained the involvement of the 17 meswbethe Task Force representing the
primary electrical consumption sectors of the Amesmamty, as well as the community

members that were involved in a subcommittee or seaged sector consultant or expert
resource.

A representative from each sector presented a desorgititeir sector, initiatives, goals, and
their top two priorities toward reducing electrical conption. The sectors represented were:
* Building Contractors/ Developers

* Business

» Civic Organizations

» Faith-Based Organizations

* Non-City Government

* Residential

» School Districts



Ms. Rankin thanked everyone involved in the process. s&idethere is much diversity in the
needs, challenges, goals, and action steps in allr'sebit some common findings among all
sectors can be noted:

1. The interest in and dedication toward ensuring a saslaifuture is important to the
Ames community.

2. There is an abundance of resources currently aeadlat) in place to assist and guide all

sectors’ members in achieving significant and immededactions in electrical consumption.

3. Reduction goals are embraced by all sectors.

4. In spite of the interest in sustainability anddlailable resources, there are still
considerable challenges throughout the Ames commuretygaging sector members in
electrical consumption reduction initiatives, actigtieand programs and sustaining
involvement on an ongoing basis.

Ms. Rankin also said there are three overarching théeteveen sectors on which to base some
comprehensive action steps that encompass all sectors:

1. The need for an increased and enhanced focus on edwsradiawareness resources and
campaigns.

2. The need for an increased and enhanced focus on engagtigting, and sustaining
participation.

3. The need for an increased and enhanced focus omahtitg-minded planning and
policies.

Ms. Rankin said that to support the three action steps éhcompass all sectors, the
Sustainability Task Force is proposing the following:

1. The establishment of an Electrical Efficiency Eation Committee - The focus of this
committee would be to take a collective look at the efitutal resources noted in tity

of Ames Sustainability Plan for Electrical Consumption Reduction and other relevant
resources and offer recommendations related to inoget® accessibility, availability, and
utilization of these resources. It would also condidlemeed for additional resources and
implement steps for their development and completion.

2. The establishment of an Electrical Efficiency Egegyaent and Recognition Committee -
The focus of this committee would be to create a ratiogmprogram specifically related
to achievements and engagement in electrical consumptiction by individuals and
organizations in the Ames community.

3. The establishment of a Review Team of CurrentieslRelated to Electrical Efficiency -
The focus of this review team would be to consider aaduate current policies and
provide recommendations to the City Council as relatedolanning and policy
consideration that should be undertaken and/or implememteifet further assistance
and incentive as related to electrical consumption rexfuct

Ms. Rankin said these groups would not be long-standing aa@hdce mmittee would work with
City staff toward its goals. She said the Task Fat®peful that the City Council will support
City staff in assisting the Task Force with putting tleenmittees together and assisting the

2



committees in moving forward with future plans.

Council Member Orazem asked the school subcommittee¢ abergy usage for the new middle
school compared to the old middle school. He said ¢leschool is 50% larger than the old
one, and energy costs are more than double what theyaivéne old site. He asked about
additional space in other schools. Gerry Petersciviref Facilities Planning and Management
for Ames Community School District (ACSD) said thahe@ow air conditioners account for
much of the air conditioning in schools currently. $a& that ACSD is hoping to offset some
of those costs with technology such as wind energglar generation. Mr. Schainker said the
existing code involving alternate energy may need t@tisited since the options approved by
Council are residential in scale.

Council Member Davis expressed interest in the Resad&wctor’s goal to put a “home energy
yardstick” feature on the City website. This featuoala allow utility customers to view their
energy use in relative terms and to compare their ensegio the energy used in similar homes
with a similar household size. Member Davis asked meh this feature would cost. Corey
Metzger, Mechanical Engineer at RDG Planning and Des&jd,that the group researched the
feature, and it would cost approximately $25,000 initially dmalia $7,000 yearly.

Council Member Larson asked for clarification regardirgrequest for Council to support the
use of City staff time for the recommended committéds. Rankin said many of the resources
are already out there, but the resources and the medisseminating the resources may need
to be adjusted for particular users. Mr. Schainker sgakementation will be addressed later,
but most of the support will be provided by the utility dément. He said the Public Relations
Office will also be involved. Mr. Schainker said the initiatives are important, so it becomes
a matter of how much time it will take to work on tieeommendations. Ms. Rankin said the
groups are very proactive, so some concerns can be aftingtl more of a focus group
approach so that questions can be answered and the tea@sngidn continue on.

Council Member Orazem addressed the educational initiadingsactivities survey that was
developed for organizations in the Ames community. &id that a small percentage of
respondents surveyed have utilized the Smart Energyriergyeaudit. He asked why more
organizations are not taking advantage of it. Ms. Ragwiththat many are not aware that it is
offered, and some businesses may be leery becausestihweytied compliance issues may be
discovered. Mr. Schainker said it would be beneftmaask about the audit on the annual
Residential Satisfaction Survey. Ms. Rankin said #élwedreness is really the issue, since when
the process is known and users navigate it, the reselisesy beneficial.

Council Member Wacha thanked everyone for their work,sam that behavioral change is
where a lot of opportunity lies. He said that large tapaint complexes would be a good place
to focus. Ms. Rankin agreed that they are a very irapopart of the residential sector, and
discussed how they can begin efforts and partner withoeds. Jim Gaunt, spokesperson for
the faith-based organizations sector, said that higpgioworking through the fact that those
who reap the benefits of electrical consumption redon@i@ not necessarily the ones that pay
for the capital improvements.

Council Member Orazem said he is really interestet@rgy reduction competitions as a means
for sharing information, and seems a natural way @& for ways to conserve. He wondered
who would lead the competition. Jen Malone, spokespdosdhe business sector, said the

3



Chamber would be an option, as well as the businesarslgtity organization for leading the
effort on competitions among businesses.

Council Member Larson said that the Greek communitg\aa State University is at the crux
of competition, and there are approximately 2,000 residlatdive in Greek housing. He said
great opportunity could be found there for energy reductidinerfiorm of competitions. Ms.
Rankin said she has already been approached by the Graetuaity, and Greek Go Green is
a program that will be kicked off this fall. She saidirtHiest area of focus is electrical
consumption reduction.

Council Member Mahayni said the Sustainability TaskcEdnmas presented its report in ten
months, which is an impressive accomplishment. Btesdid that this is “touching the surface,”
and that moving forward with sustainability effortsnportant.

Council Member Orazem discussed the residential yakdgliea. He wondered if the
concept would trigger more audits when residents are @lsleet their household consumption
in comparison with similar households. Mr. Metzgad $hat the number of occupants per
household would also be part of the comparison. Hesalsbtheir group is hoping to target
schools and some civic organizations to see if cetaentives can be offered (i.e. extra credit
to students who begin energy conservation methods at)hoMr. Gaunt said that the faith-
based organizations sector sent a letter to allfsifed organizations containing a table with
electrical usage by account number for all faith-basgédrozations. He said he heard that the
organization with the largest consumption was a bitih&td, so he believes that how consumers
rate in comparison to others does matter.

Council Member Goodman said that he had audits perfoomédils home and his businesses.
He said he found that taking the next step was the hatdapdrthat a little bit of hand-holding
may be helpful. He said he is interested in how manjt@actually translate into action.

Ms. Rankin said the business sector and the faith-lsgstolr will have their own groups to share
ideas, motivate, and talk about successes and next ssépsalso said the three committees
would be providing resources and contacts for moving fatwar

Council Member Mahayni said the message is that theh@is to invest resources in order to
create new awareness within the community. He salobls heard this, and the City will need
to invest more in this initiative.

SUSTAINABILITY TASK FORCE PRESENTATION OF SUSTAINABILITY
EDUCATIONAND AWARENESSINITIATIVESANDACTIVITIES: Mr. Schainker said
the second part of the Task Force charge was to findloattother entities around the City are
doing to promote electrical consumption reduction, wisiclontained in the second report given.

Ms. Rankin said that a 23-question educational initiatinelsactivities survey was developed that
focused specifically on educational efforts by orgammnstin the Ames community related to
electrical consumption reduction and other areas of sakilty. Ms. Rankin reviewed the
results, and said that over 60% of the organizations@tr@roviding electrical consumption
reduction education and awareness information or euenegmployees, staff, volunteers,



customers, clients, or partnering organizations. Tresgendents didn’'t consider offering these
opportunities a priority of their organization.

Ms. Rankin also said that 43% of the organizations sed/épd used Smart Energy resources
and 54% of respondents reported they provide education anéresarfor other areas of
sustainability to their employees, staff, and volurgae&he said many respondents had concerns
about expenses involved, but the opportunities for awsseare present. Ms. Rankin said the
organizations surveyed are most interested in bestigeaetnd tips. She told the Council that
while 39 respondents completed the survey, 200 additional paeywled it and did not fill it out.

Mr. Schainker said the report is a result of much efiod many hours and dedication. He said
that no direction is needed now, and that after stafli €ouncil have studied the
recommendations, it will be brought back to Councildoection. Mr. Schainker said that
looking beyond this assignment, this group will help tstairm ideas as Council desires to move
forward and accomplish its goal of going green to promate@mental sustainability.
COMMENTS: Moved by Davis, seconded by Goodman, to refer to athdtter from QuikTrip
regarding an alcoholic beverage tasting event.
Vote on Motion: 5-1. Voting aye: Davis, Goodman, baxsMahayni, Orazem. Voting nay:
Wacha. Motion declared carried.

Moved by Davis, seconded by Larson, to refer to stégtter from Heartland Senior Services
regarding its contract with the City of Ames. Mr. 8iclker said this item will be discussed at
the next Transit Board meeting.

Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 9:21 p.m.

Diane R. Voss, City Clerk Ann H. Campbell, Mayor

Erin Thompson, Recording Secretary



